
PROCEEDINGS OF

THE GRAND FORKS REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING

January 18, 2001

The Grand Forks Regional Airport Authority Board of Commissioners met in the Board Room of the
Airport Authority on Thursday, January 18th with Chairman Tim Mutchler presiding.  Those present
were: Vice Chairman Brad Beyer; Commissioners Rich Becker, Dave Molmen, Attorney Don Olson and
staff Steve Johnson, Executive Director; Mary Jo Crystal, Director of Finance and Administration; Todd
Hanson, Director of Operations; Tim Burke, Marketing/Communications Manager; Gary Baker,
Operations Supervisor; and Dave Meagher VMT.

Chairman Mutchler called the meeting to order at 8:10 a.m.

A.  Approval of Minutes:

1. December 21, 000

Becker pointed out that the explanation for pursuing the E/W runway project in 2002, under agenda item
B, discussion item #2, gives the impression that the reason for moving the project up is that it will not
greatly impact the capital improvement plan.  Becker stated that the primary reason for moving the
project up was the expanding UND pilot program over the next few years.  Beyer moved approval of
minutes with stated amendment.  Becker seconded. Action Taken: Motion carried unanimously.

B. Resolutions:

1.  #01-01 “Matter of Banking Services Provider”

Johnson explained that banking services for the Authority would be put through a selection process.
Johnson also suggested revisions to the policy manual to reflect the process.  The requested revisions
will be brought back to the Board after review by the attorney.

2. #02-01 “Matter of Pension Discretionary Transition Payments”

Johnson requested that the Board consider approving pension discretionary payments for 2001 per the
provisions of resolution #04-99, dated May 20, 1999.  Molmen moved to approve resolution #02-01.
Beyer seconded.  Becker asked for an explanation and history for these payments.  Johnson’s explained
the process and reason for the payments. Action Taken:  Motion carried unanimously.



C. Reports:

1. Year To Date Financials:

Crystal reported that since the financials were printed more invoices have been paid and adjustments
made.  There has been a $20,000 change in the capital fund bringing that fund to $323,000.  There has
been approximately $30,000 in invoices paid from the operating fund and there will be close to another
$50,000 in adjustments.  Crystal announced that the audit would begin February 5th. The final audit
should be ready to present to the Board at the March meeting.

2. Year to Date Stats:

Burke reported that enplanments are up 2.26% over last year.  Operations have been slowly increasing
mainly due to UND activity. Enplaned cargo weight, with the large majority being FedEx, is down
slightly but volume is up. Deplaned cargo weight is up almost 7.23%.  Becker asked if any cargo was
being lost to Fargo and if we should be competing for cargo business.  He recommended exploring
options.  Johnson explained that even though Fargo has routinely made a practice of take business away
form GFK the Authority has not adopted a policy of doing the same.  Johnson also explained that
FedEx’s corporate position is that they would like to avoid sharing ramp space but that their position
should not drive decisions made regarding other cargo carriers.

3. UND National Meet:

UND students Beth Martin and Levi McMahon provided some history and explained the SAFECON
being hosted by UND May 15 – 19.

4. Covered Walkways:

Hanson reported on several options in covered walkways for passengers walking to and from the smaller
aircraft. When installed they become a permanent part of the terminal and are not movable. The average
cost for an eight-foot wide covered walkway is $776 per lineal foot. That price does not include
windows, doors or heating units.  Hanson stated that there are also jetways that will accommodate
smaller jets.  The jetway presently situated at gate one can be modified and lowered to accommodate
CRJs. The jetway at gate two has already been lowered to handle the RJ85s but can’t be lowered to
handle the CRJs.  Becker stated that anything that can be done to improve the perception of the airport
as being user-friendly is worth looking at.   He suggested that options seriously be considered and a
decision be made by next fall as to whether or not to pursue covered walkways for small jets.

5. 200 Beautification Goals:

Linstad reported that 175 beatification recommendations were made, 49 were completed with 11
ongoing.  $13,000 was budged to complete goals and just over $11,000 was used.  Mutchler asked if the
drain ditch west of the tower had been cleaned up.  Johnson replied that grass has been planted twice but
the area will probably need more work.



6. FedEx Shelter:

Johnson reported that FedEx has requested that the Authority look into constructing a carport type of
structure south of their building to be used to store equipment.  An estimate has been submitted to
FedEx.  This issue will be brought back to the Board for consideration.

D. Discussion:

1.  Nodak Flying Club Attorney Fees

Johnson referred to a memo sent to the Board outlining possible alternatives to paying the flying club
attorney fees associated with the Writ of Mandamus.  Becker expressed his appreciation for the time
staff put into the research.

Olson explained the law regarding payment of attorney fees for litigation in North Dakota and stated that
they are only allowed when authorized by statute.  A court may order the award of attorney fees in
certain cases if the party claiming the right to attorney’s requested them on the basis that the claim
against them is frivolous. The Authority was not the instigator of the law suite and therefore did not
cause the flying club to incur attorney fees.

Clint Rodingen thanked the Board for looking into the possibility of reimbursing the club for attorney
fees.  He explained that Flight Support instigated the Writ of Mandamus and in doing so caused the
flying club to become co-defendants with the Authority.  Because of this action the Authority and the
flying club should have been working together against the plaintiff.  Rodingen also stated that he feels
the Authority is directly responsible for the flying club having to retain a lawyer and requested that the
Board reimburse the club for attorney fees, lend the club the money, or come up with some way to
reimburse expenses associated with the law suite.  Becker commented that, “Steve has looked into what
we can do and I don’t think we can do anything else”.  Rodingen asked if Steve and he could continue
with conversations and try to work out some options.  Mutchler replied that they could continue to
converse about it.

Seifert reported that Flight Support has filed a Part 16 with the FAA, which involves the same issue as
the Writ of Mandamus.  This action will involve an FAA judge hearing the arguments instead of a
municipal judge.  There are strict guidelines and the process should move quickly.

E. Other Business:

Becker voiced concerns regarding the possibility of Northwest dropping a jet from the GFK flight
schedule.  He recommended that the Board work aggressively to persuade Northwest to continue using
the DC9s.  Johnson explained that presently there are 3 DC9s and an AVRO, which is a jet, providing
service to GFK.  He also explained that a DC9 is being pulled in April because load factors where down
in April of last year and past load factors drive future schedules.  In talking to the Northwest scheduler it
appears as if the substituted DC9 will be rescheduled for May.  Johnson stated that Northwest officials
have assured him that GFK will not become a Mesaba only station.  Mutchler suggested that the Board
make a visit to Minneapolis and visit with Northwest officials.   Becker emphasized not waiting until



DC9 service is discontinued.  He urged the Board to react now to Northwest stating that once DC9
service is gone it will be hard to get back because capacity numbers would not warrant Northwest
bringing it back.  Johnson will set up a meeting with Northwest.

Johnson encouraged the Board member to attend the Chamber of Commerce's annual meeting February
13th.

Becker asked about the concern that the FAA ADO will not authorize the construction of an E/W
runway due to the lagoon and landfill.  Johnson stated that he was not going to bring this issue to the
Board until he received notification from the ADO but added that it does not look good because of the
wildlife problems associated with the lagoons and landfill.   Johnson will bring this issue back to the
Board after he receives the decision from the Bismarck ADO.

Meeting adjourned at 9:35 a.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Patti Linstad, Board Secretary



PROCEEDINGS OF

THE GRAND FORKS REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING

March 22, 2001

The Grand Forks Regional Airport Authority Board of Commissioners met in the Board Room of the
Airport Authority on Thursday, March 22, 2001 with Chairman Tim Mutchler presiding.  Those present
were: Commissioners Brad Beyer, Clark Cronquist, and staff Steve Johnson, Executive Director; Mary
Jo Crystal, Director of Finance and Administration; Todd Hanson, Director of Operations; Gary Baker,
Operations Supervisor; Dave Meagher VMT and Bob Wood, GF County Commissioner.

The meeting was called to order at 8:00 a.m.

A.  Approval of Minutes:

1. January 18, 2001

Cronquist moved approval of the minutes from January 18, 2001.  Beyer seconded. Action Taken:
Motion carried unanimously.

B. Resolutions:

1.  #01-01 “Matter of Selection of Banking Services Provider”:

Johnson reported that a request for proposals for banking services was advertised and three responses
received.  Crystal reported that the three proposals came from Alerus Financial, the Bremmer Institution
and Wells Fargo.  In reviewing the proposals it was noted that Wells Fargo did not appropriately follow
instructions and was not considered.  In reviewing the two remaining proposals Alerus had lower fees
and higher interest rates on their products.  The recommendation is to continue the relationship with
Alerus.

Cronquist moved approval of resolution #01-01.  Beyer seconded. Action Taken: Motion carried
unanimously.

2. #02-01  “Matter of Group Health Insurance Services Provider”

Johnson explained that resolution 02-01 is a contingent resolution in the event that NDPERS is selected
as the Authority’s health insurance provider. NDPERS requires a resolution and approving a contingent
resolution would eliminate any lapse in coverage from when the old plan stops and NDPERS starts.  If
NDPERS is not selected the resolution will be voided.

Beyer moved to approve resolution #02-01.  Cronquist seconded.  Action Taken:  Motion carried
unanimously.



3. #03-01  “Matter of Restaurant Agreement”

Johnson reported that he was contacted by the city auditor’s office regarding the Crosswinds Restaurant
liquor licenses.  The city is holding final approval of the liquor license until the Authority submits
documentation that the restaurant’s lease and operating agreement is valid through December 31,2001.
The original lease expired in 1993 and has been extended twice by signature letter. It is currently in
effect by mutual acceptance of the conditions by restaurant management and the Authority.  Johnson
requested approval of the Board to extend the lease and operating agreement to the end of 2001 with the
signing of another signature letter.

Cronquist moved approval of resolution 03-01.  Beyer seconded questioning if the agreement should be
extended to 2002.  Ron Elder stated that signing an extension for a year would not be in the best interest
of the restaurant’s management.  He requested that the Board extend the lease for a five-year period.
Johnson stated that he is not in favor of a five-year extension until the Board has time to review the
agreement.  Elder expressed concern regarding the liability of a tax bill that comes every year with his
corporation name on it.  Johnson explained that in Don Olson’s opinion the city auditor’s office is not
pressing for payment of the tax bill and therefore it should not be a concern.  Elder explained that he
can’t take his corporation anywhere with the tax liability on the books.  It was decided that the tax issue
would be brought back at a future meeting. Beyer recommended that Elder work with Johnson regarding
a five-year lease and bring it back to the Board for approval. Action Taken:  Motion carried
unanimously.

C. Reports:

1. 2000 Audit Report:

Ron Johnke of Brady Martz reported on the 2001 audit.  Johnke recommended that a policy be written to
deter shift swapping and time clock abuses.

2.  Year To Date Financials:

Crystal reported that through the first two months of 2001 the operating fund was showing a deficit of
approximately $20,000.  The capital fund had a net income of $123,000 and the net income in the debt
service fund was $39,000.  A sixth fund was created, the unreserved fund balance, to clarify the situation
in the operating fund.

3. Parking Paystations Software:

Johnson recommended that the new software and maintenance licenses for the parking system be
purchased. He explained that the software upgrade needs to be purchased to allow for support of the
operating system.  Components for the old system will be difficult if not impossible to replace.  Cost of
the software is $15,000.  Beyer moved to approve purchase of the new software.  Cronquist seconded.
Action Taken:  Motion carried unanimously.

4. Policy Manual Revisions:

Johnson suggested that section 107 of the policy manual be amended to remove the attorney, auditor and
engineer as officers of the Authority.  The recommended draft includes only the executive director,



secretary and treasurer as officers of the Authority.   Johnson also added a sentence that refers to the
bank institutions as being one of the service providers that is routinely employed.  Don Olson reviewed
the proposal and concurs with Johnson’s recommendations.  Cronquist stated that the Board does not
have an appointed treasurer.  Johnson replied that the director of finance would perform in that capacity.
Cronquist requested that it be noted that the director of finance hold the position of treasurer.  Cronquist
moved approval.  Beyer seconded.  Action Taken Motion carried unanimously.

5. Northwest Airlines Meeting:

Johnson presented the results of a meeting with Northwest officials in Minneapolis.  Representatives
from the Authority and community met with Northwest to discuss various issues including the change in
equipment scheduling.

D. Discussions:

1.  Flying Club Rules and Regulations:

Johnson reviewed decisions that need to be made regarding the rules and regulations.  The next step in
the process will be a to hold a special Board meeting to discuss the basic principals.  Mutchler stated that
if necessary there would be extra evening meetings to discuss this issue prior to a formal hearing.

Clint Rodingen stated that if public hearings are started the flying club is as good as done. Mutchler
assured Rodingen that there would not be a public hearing until discussion meetings are held. Rodingen
asked if anyone on the Authority Board or Authority staff was associated with GFK Leasing LLC.
Everyone stated that they were not.

2.  Executive Director’s Contract Renewal:

Mutchler stated that he would appoint a couple of Board members to enter into negotiations with
Johnson

3. Terminal Information Center:

Johnson reported that Becker has recommended that a terminal information center be developed to
display information on the Grand Forks region.  He also recommended that an electronic programmable
sign be placed in the terminal and changed regularly to provide information on events and community
information.  The area recommended for the information center is the empty ticket counter space.  The
cost to renovate the space would be approximately $500 and the sign would cost between $3,000 and
$5,000.  Becker has identified partners that he feels will participate in purchasing the sign with the
option of a joint use agreement.  After discussion it was decided to encourage Becker to continue with
plans for the center and sign.

E. Other Business:

Sue Vacek asked if the flying club would be getting responses to correspondence sent to Johnson.
Johnson requested that Vacek meet with him after the meeting to discuss the correspondences.



Bruce Smith requested that the instrument approaches be open during the runway project this summer.
Hanson responded that he has discussed this issue with all concerned and that the tower is in favor of
keeping the ILS operational.  However, the FAA is adamant against keeping the system operational
because of the potential safety risks.  Hanson stressed that the FAA makes the decision regarding this
matter not the Authority.  Beyer asked if there were any options available for keeping the ILS available
or to limit down time.  Johnson replied that the safety plan states that nav aids would be operational
when feasible, but when construction equipment is in critical areas the ILS can not be operational.

Meeting adjourned at 9:40 a.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Patti Linstad, Board Secretary




































































